
-873-2014 

 

NORTHAMPTON COUNTY  

REGULAR SESSION 

October 20, 2014 
 

Be It Remembered that the Board of Commissioners of Northampton County met on 

October 20, 2014 with the following present:  Robert Carter, Fannie Greene, Virginia 

Spruill , Chester Deloatch, and Joseph Barrett 

 

Others Present:  Kimberly Turner, Scott McKellar, Michelle Nelson, and Katherine Parker 

 

Agenda Work Session:  

 

A 10-minute work session was held to discuss todayôs agenda items. Chairman Carter called 

upon County Manager Kimberly Turner for input. Ms. Turner mentioned that Tab 4 will be 

removed from the agenda, and a closed session will be added as Tab 14 after Citizens/Board 

Comments for the purpose of G.S. 143-318.11(a)(6). 

 

Regular Session: 

 

Chairman Carter called the meeting to order, welcomed everyone, and announced when citizens 

could make comments.  

 

Commissioner Barrett delivered the Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

 

Approval of Regular Session Minutes for October 6, 2014: 

 

A motion was made by Chester Deloatch and seconded by Virginia Spruill to approve the 

Regular Session Minutes for October 6, 2014.  Question Called:  All present voting yes.  

Motion carried. 

 

Approval of Closed Session Minutes for October 6, 2014: 

 

A motion was made by Virginia Spruill and seconded by Chester Deloatch to approve the Closed 

Session Minutes for October 6, 2014.  Question Called:  All present voting yes.  Motion 

carried. 

 

Approval of Agenda for October 20, 2014: 

 

A motion was made by Fannie Greene and seconded by Joseph Barrett to approve the Agenda 

with the two amendments.  Question Called:  All present voting yes.  Motion carried.  

 

Water Rate Petitions: 

 

Chairman Carter asked the citizens in the audience to raise their hands if they were there 

pertaining to the water rates. He requested that Mrs. Heller speak for the group, and after she has 

spoken, they will hear from the Board. He mentioned that if they must speak, to be sure to pass a 

form to the Clerk, so that he can call upon them at that time.  



-874-2014 

 

Mrs. Gloria Heller appeared before the Board on behalf of Northampton County citizens with 

signed petitions concerning the increased water rates. Mrs. Heller introduced Ms. Vera Lowe to 

read the letter that she wrote addressing the citizensô concerns.  

 

Mrs. Heller said in addition to the letter, there were questions as she went around to the 

petitioners. The citizens wanted to know why they had to pay $300 for a deposit. If their rate is at 

$19.50, after that why is it that they have to pay $5 a gallon or $2.50 a gallon. Also if the water 

bill is not paid on the 14
th
 (not including if the 14

th
 falls on a weekend) there is no grace period. 

Also reading on the back of the water bill each month, there is a 10 percent late fee of the water 

bill that they have to pay. She also wanted to know why the water bill in Garysburg is the highest 

amongst the other towns in Northampton County. She said the citizens want to know why there 

isnôt a grace period of three or four days. After the 14
th
 they have to pay the late fee plus a ten 

percent. Mrs. Heller then introduced Reverend Richard Webb. 

 

Rev. Webb came before the Board to voice his concern as well on behalf of the citizens in the 

County. He said he researched the July 2014 rate structure for water from a 1,000 to 10,000 rate 

per gallon. He said his concern is if you are already paying a rate per month, why couldnôt the 

Board put a little slack in the structure. He is asking the Board to consider the income of the 

people and the employment in this County. He said that 8.2 percent of the County is 

unemployed. A large percentage of people in the County are on a fixed income and public 

assistance from Social Services. He asked that the Board take this matter into consideration. He 

mentioned that the Board members said they would make a difference, and the citizens trust 

them and put their confidence in them to be honest and do the right thing, not to bring hardship 

upon the citizens. He is asking them to do what they promised the citizens in Northampton 

Countyðto look out for their best interest. Rev. Webb also mentioned that in two weeks, they 

need to know something from the Board.  

 

Chairman Carter wanted to make a couple of points. He said in the letter from Ms. Lowe, it was 

indicated that there should be a waiver of time to pay the water bill. He believes the water bills 

are sent out on the first day of each month, and it takes maybe until the 5
th
 for most people to 

receive it, and they have until the 14
th
 to pay it (before they have to pay the 10 percent). So that 

gives them a nine day grace period to get the bill paid. He said his second point is that the 

Enterprise Fund (which is the fund from the water and sewer) has been supplemented by the 

citizensô tax dollars for many years. Every year, when the Auditor comes before the Board, they 

tell them they have to do something about the Enterprise Fund because it is running in the red. 

Tax paying dollars go to catch up the slack. The Board thought that by having a rate increase, 

they would not have to use tax dollars to cover the Enterprise Fund because the Fund is supposed 

to be a userôs fund that should be self-sufficient. 

 

Mrs. Heller said they do understand the grace period, but that there is no flat rate in the late fee. 

It is 10 percent of whatever the bill is.  

 

Rev. Webb referenced the comment that Chairman Carter made about the date that the citizens 

get their water bill. He noted that not everyone gets their checks by the 3
rd
. Some people donôt 

get their checks on the 3
rd

 because the system has changed. Some get theirs around the 15
th
 or the 

18
th
 so that would make them late. He is asking the Board to consider and fix this issue on the 

rate. He noted his late fee changes every time he gets a bill. He stated that they are not saying 

they should not have gone up on the water, but they need to consider the citizens, and who they 



-875-2014 

 

are dealing with in the community. He said everyone is not fortunate, some are struggling to 

make ends meet.  

 

Chairman Carter let the citizens know that they feel their pain. He said before the citizens came, 

the Board members including himself talked about the increase after they received their first bill. 

He called upon County Manager Turner to speak to the citizens. 

 

Ms. Turner addressed the citizens and agreed that she also feels their pain. She said she and the 

Board are concerned, and the question is what to do now. She explained how the rates came 

about so that the citizens could understand. She became Interim County Manager on March 18
th
. 

The water rates were already established and discussed by the former County Manager, the NC 

Rural Water Association, and the Public Works Director. By the time she became Interim, it was 

too late for her to go back and review what had been established. She said they were doing the 

budget process at that time. The Board could only work with what they had at that time. She said 

they will be looking at what they can do from this point forward. They will have to see what the 

Auditors will tell them about where they stand fiscally and financially. At that point, they will be 

able to determine what they can do as far as adjusting the water rates. However, she can 

guarantee them that by next fiscal year, she will re-evaluate the rates to make sure they are doing 

what is in the best interest of the citizens. She said this issue canôt be a quick fix. The Enterprise 

Fund budget is based on these water rates. That means this is the revenue that is coming into that 

budget. The expenditures must meet that revenue. If they decrease the water rates, that means the 

revenue will decrease, and that means the Enterprise Fund will be operating in the red.  

 

One of the citizens asked why this increase mostly affected the citizens of Garysburg. She said 

there are people that live in the County that are not affected as much. People from Gaston get 

their water from Halifax County. She said sheôs gotten three different answers from Public 

Works. She said that because citizens from Garysburg get water and sewer, their bills have 

doubled. Ms. Turner confirmed that any citizen that has water and sewer, their bill increased 

double because there was an increase on the water side as well as the sewer side.  

 

Mrs. Heller wanted to clarify what Ms. Turner said previously: that within the year, she canôt see 

or do anything about this until the fiscal year is in progress. Ms. Turner said she is not going to 

say we canôt do anything; right now she canôt say if they can or canôt. But she knows that by the 

next fiscal year, they can do something. Mrs. Heller then asked if the water they get is from 

Weldon. Ms. Turner confirmed. Mrs. Heller asked if the citizens are going to have to wait for 

another fiscal year before a change comes. Ms. Turner said that is a possibility. Mrs. Heller 

wanted to clarify that something will be done in the next fiscal year. Ms. Turner replied yes. 

Another citizen asked when the fiscal year ends. Ms. Turner responded June 30
th
. 

Chairman Carter called the audience to order. He said it is impossible for them to say to the 

citizens right now that in two weeks their rate will be reduced. He said the Board will be working 

on this issue, and the citizens will have some relief; if not this fiscal year, by next fiscal year. 

Depending upon the audit report, the Board is going to work towards a way to fix this situation. 

He said from this point on, the Board will go forward to aid and assist the citizens in any way 

they can.  

 

Chairman Carter thanked the citizens for coming. He mentioned that the Board should receive 

the Auditorôs report some time next month. He assured the citizens that the Board will inform 

them as soon as the Auditorôs report results come out. He said the Public Works Director is in 



-876-2014 

 

the room and hears the citizensô concerns. The Board will give directives to the Public Works 

Director based upon the financial condition to give the citizens some relief. Rev. Webb asked 

that when the Board gets that information, to please forward the results via a letter to Mrs. 

Heller.  

 

 

 

PLEASE SEE SCANNED DOCUMENT WHICH IS 

 HEREBY MADE A PART OF THESE MINUTES: 

  



-877-2014 

 

 
  



-878-2014 

 

 
  


